MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
September 11, 2025

The Arkansas State Police Commission met on Thursday, September 11, 2025, at the
Arkansas State Police Headquarters, Little Rock, Arkansas.

Commission Chairman Allison called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Commissioner John Allison, Chairman
Commissioner Jim Hinkle, Vice Chairman
Commissioner Ken Reeves, Secretary
Commissioner Neff Basore
Commissioner Steve Edwards
Commissioner Mike Akin
Commissioner Jeff Teague

STATE POLICE PERSONNEL PRESENT:

Colonel Mike Hagar Lt. Colonel Jason Aaron

Lt. Colonel Mike Kennedy Major Ron Casey

Lieutenant Matt Toon Jessica Dietz

Captain Rick Neill Major Roby Rhoads

Major Stacie Rhoads Eric Wacaster

Jenna Castleberry Captain Wesley Smithee

Major Jeff Drew Dan Mack

Kalika Rogers Major Mike Moyer

Susan Tedford Shelly Cantrell

Scarlett Taylor Captain Jeff Plouch

Captain David Williams Lieutenant Seth Pinner

Bridget White Teresa Hardy

Joan Shipley Nick Genty

Jonathan Nettles Donna Humphries
OTHERS PRESENT:

Sarah DeBusk-Griffin, AG Office
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
Commission Chairman Allison led the pledge of allegiance.
NOTIFICATION OF MEDIA:
The media was notified of this meeting on September 2, 2025.
MINUTES:

Commission Chairman Allison stated you have the minutes of the prior meeting.
Commissioner Reeves made a motion to approve the minutes of August 14, 2025, regular
monthly commission meeting. Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission
Chairman Allison stated we have a motion and second, any opposed, the motion carried.

Commission Chairman Allison stated we have an Official Commendation Award, Colonel.

OFFICIAL COMMENDATIONS:

Colonel Hagar stated yes sir, we have Telecom Supervisor Jessica Dietz, and the overview
will be given by Lieutenant Matt Toon.

Lieutenant Matt Toon stated Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, Colonel good morning, today I
have the pleasure of reading an Official Commendation for our Chief Radio Operator Jessica
Dietz at Troop H and quickly I will say that I could probably write one of these about once a
month for her, she is a fantastic employee, that goes above and beyond on a regular basis.
On Thursday, January 9, 2025, a winter storm struck Arkansas creating dangerous driving
conditions on our roadways and resulting in a volume of traffic emergencies that taxed our
response. Often, we, and rightfully so, focus on the great work our troopers do during these
events, but the troopers on the road could not do their jobs without the amazing work done
by our dispatchers who are the link between the citizens in need and the resources that can



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
September 11, 2025 — Page 2

help them. In Troop H, not only did our Chief Radio Operator Jessica Dietz organize her
team of dispatchers for the winter storm response, but she also worked tirelessly during the
event, stopping only to sleep on an office couch for a few hours at a time. In a 24-hour period
between noon on Thursday, January 9 and noon on Friday, January 10, Troop H received
more than 400 phone calls from people needing assistance. As a supervisor, Jessica could
have pushed others to work in her place, but as a true leader who cares about her people, she
led them by example by working far more hours than any of her subordinates and
volunteering to work the busiest and least desirable shifts so they wouldn’t have to. Jessica
has always been the type of employee who does whatever needs to be done without being
told. Now as a leader, she does whatever needs to be done to take care of her subordinates
and accomplish the mission of the ASP. Jessica should be recognized for her efforts during
the winter storm on January 9, 2025. They were selfless and extraordinary, and they represent
the leader she is every day.

Colonel Mike Hagar presented Telecom Supervisor Jessica Dietz an Official Commendation
Award.

Commission Chairman Allison stated congratulations Jessica.

Commission Chairman Allison stated next, we have division reports, Jenna Castleberry,
Fiscal Section.

Jenna Castleberry stated good morning, Colonel, Mr. Chair, and Commissioners, you have
the reports in front of you, and they are through the month of August, so two months into the
new fiscal year and we should be operating at 17%, and we are right on track. For the month
we did update all of certifications of income, those are prepared every year as part of the
budgetary process where we estimate revenues. We just update those periodically to reflect
closer to actuals, there were no major changes, just a little bit of clean up. Our annual
equitable sharing report was successfully submitted and has been accepted. Legislative Audit
has completed the FY24 audit and ASP had no findings.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Administrative Services, Major Roby Rhoads.

Major Roby Rhoads stated Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, Colonel Hagar good morning, for
last month we had five military deployments.

Major Roby Rhoads stated for the 2025A Troop School we have 67 applicants left and that
starts on September 28, 2025.

Major Roby Rhoads stated our POLAR Team last month saw 66 individuals and had 17
follow up visits and one group debrief.

Major Roby Rhoads stated for the ASP Health Plan our paid claims were $137,000.00 less
than the prior month and we received over $238,000.00 in rebates in our first quarter, so that
brought our paid claims down to $1.3 million, so a little better month. Our contracted savings
for July were just over $1.4 million and our total fund balance is $13,455,000 and some
change.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Major Drew, Crimes Against Children.

Major Drew stated good morning, Colonel, Chair, Commissioners, the CACD Hotline
received 5,906 calls in the month of August, with 2,529 of those being accepted for
investigation, and an additional 696 for differential response. Major Drew stated there were
13 child deaths reported, five were investigated, and eight were assessed. Major Drew stated
the CACD investigations unit closed 547 cases, with 142 of those being found true, for a
substantiation rate of 30%.

Commissioner Neff Basore asked is your call number down a little bit in August, isn’t it
usually right at 6,000? Major Drew stated they pick back up because school started again,
they are normally lower during the summer months because a lot of our reports come out of
the school system.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Criminal Investigations, Major Stacie Rhoads.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
September 11, 2025 — Page 3

Major Stacie Rhoads stated good morning, Colonel, Chairman, Commissioners, for the
month of August we initiated 98 investigations, 39 were primary, five were secondary. We
worked 20 death investigations, five of which were homicides, we conducted two officer
involved shooting investigations and two officer misconduct investigations. We made 70
felony arrests. Major Stacie Rhoads stated we conducted 84 crime scene searches, conducted
378 interviews and executed 110 search warrants, we had 39 appearances in court and
conducted five scans with our Crime Scene scanners, with our FARO scanners. Major Stacie
Rhoads stated this month I want to highlight a case, and it is in the report out of Company E,
and it is a conviction that we received on a particularly sad case. Back in 2022 the Perry
County Sheriff’s Office had arrested a man and taken him into the detention center and when
they got him in the deputies had not done a significant enough search and he had a gun and
he shot and killed a 20-year-old jailer, who obviously had aspirations to become a law
enforcement officer. The reason that I highlight this case is as I said it was in 2022, and it
just went to court in 2025 and that is 3 years, and it just highlights the importance of why our
reports that we write become so significant, because as you all know as time goes by we
forget and the reason that we spend so much time in our offices working on reports, not
playing solitaire. Major Stacie Rhoads stated because of that and the reports, he received a
life sentence plus 15 years. Just stunning work that was done by our agents there in Company
E to secure that conviction and for that family.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Highway Patrol, Major Ron Casey.

Major Ron Casey stated good morning, Chairman, Colonel and Commissioners the August
report for Highway Patrol, there was a total of 2,745 criminal arrests, with 1,782 persons
arrested. Major Casey stated troopers arrested 387 DWIs and 11 DUIs. There were 8,411
citations issued for hazardous arrests, with 632 physical arrests resulting from those.
Troopers issued 20,118 citations for the month of August. Troopers assisted 3,164 motorists
and pursuits were down a little bit to 32. Crash investigation there was 1,173 with 43 of those
being fatalities which is up a little bit from last month. Troopers recovered 17 stolen vehicles
with a net worth of about $416,500.00, and about $750.00 worth of stolen property was
recovered. Troopers drove 959,674,000 miles in August. Major Casey stated we had eight
SWAT missions, one of those was assisting Homeland Security with a crypto mine and they
added two new members to the SWAT Team after tryouts. Major Casey stated ERT had two
missions including a search mission in Grant County for a missing person. Major Casey
stated we had thirteen aircraft missions, there were 23,205 DL/CDL tests given, and the
dispatch centers took in 32,181 calls for service. The Interstate Criminal Patrol seized
$375,215.00 in cash, they confiscated 637 pounds of marijuana, 91/2 pound of
methamphetamine, 331 pills including hydrocodone, fentanyl, oxycodone, ecstasy, and got
another 2 pound of THC gummies.

Commissioner Teague asked what did you say the pursuits were Major? Major Casey stated
they were 32. Commissioner Teague stated versus. Major Casey stated 41 I think last month,
down a little bit. Commissioner Teague asked is that the first time they have been down?
Major Casey stated we had a pretty good month a couple months ago, I think we had 27 in
the month of June. Commissioner Teague stated we still have our wording getting out that
maybe it is a felony, or you are not going to let them get by with that. Major Casey stated
we are getting some good court cases from this, and I hope that is a deterrent, we may have
70 next month there is no telling. Lt. Colonel Jason Aaron stated for the year we are down
about 30% over last year. Commission Chairman Allison stated that is good, it is starting to
take hold and if the prosecutors keep doing their job, we will cut that back. Major Casey
stated we have had a couple of real good outstanding cases where they got a lot of time.

Commissioner Reeves asked were the DWIs and DUIs both up a little this month? Major
Casey stated yes sir, we had one more DUI than last month and I think it was about 30 more
DWIs than last month. Commissioner Reeves asked, is it just summertime? Major Casey
stated it could be.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Regulatory and Building Operations, Major Mike
Moyer.

Major Mike Moyer stated good morning, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners and Colonel Hagar
during the month of August, the Identification Bureau and AFIS Section processed 26,678
civil background checks and 9,277 criminal fingerprint submissions. The Used Motor



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
September 11, 2025 — Page 4

Vehicle Dealer Section processed 233 dealer applications. The PI Security Section processed
581 applications during the month of August. The Fire Investigators conducted six origin
and cause investigations, and the Bomb Squad handled five explosive calls, one thing to know
on one of the explosives calls, we don’t get many like this, but they recovered a 75 MM Mark
One anti-personnel artillery projectile, which was used during WWI. Somebody had it in
their safe, their grandfather died, and they found it in there so that was a call that we normally
do not get on a military round like that.

Major Moyer stated a quick update on the barracks; we have our single-story barracks
completely in the dry and they are actually painting right now. On the two-story barracks
they are working on drywall, so it is going to be in the dry fairly soon and on the lodge, they
are finishing the roof on it, so it is coming along very quickly. Major Moyer stated we still
have a target date of May to June of 2026 to be fully complete.

Commission Chairman Allison asked do you bid them out? Major Moyer stated on this we
did alternative delivery due to the time frame we had to spend the federal funds and that is
where we request qualifications on contractors and then we interviewed them and were able
to select a contractor for that.

Commission Chairman Allison stated we do not have anything under new business. Colonel,
we will go into Executive Session.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Commissioner Reeves stated Mr. Chairman I would move that we retire into Executive
Session to consider personnel matters. Commissioners Hinkle/Basore seconded, and the
motion passed. Commission Chairman Allison asked anyone opposed and stated we will
return. The Commission went into the Executive Session at 10:18 a.m.

At 11:20 a.m., Commission Chairman Allison stated I will call the meeting back to order, we
have been discussing personnel matters, Colonel, and now I will turn it over to you, when
you get ready.

Colonel Hagar stated sir we have some recommendations for the Commission to consider for
promotions.

Colonel Hagar stated the first is Troop A, Highway Patrol Sergeant, the recommendation to
the Commission will be Corporal Jacob Farnam. Commissioner Hinkle made a motion that
Corporal Jacob Farnam be promoted to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop A.
Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison stated we have
a motion, and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye, the motion carries.

Colonel Hagar stated the second is Troop I Highway Patrol Sergeant, the recommendation to
the Commission will be Corporal Lance Coffman. Commissioner Reeves made a motion that
Corporal Lance Coffman be promoted to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop I.
Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison stated we have
a motion and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye, all those opposed, and the motion
carries.

Colonel Hagar stated next is Troop K Highway Patrol Sergeant and my recommendation to
the Commission is Corporal Bo Hayes. Commissioner Akin made a motion that Corporal
Bo Hayes be promoted to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop K. Commissioners
Reeves/Hinkle seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison stated we have a motion
and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye, all those opposed, so ordered.

Colonel Hagar stated the last one is Troop L Highway Patrol Captain and the recommendation
to the Commission will be Lieutenant Seth Pinner. Commissioner Teague made a motion
that Lieutenant Seth Pinner be promoted to Captain the Highway Patrol Division, Troop L.
Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison stated we have
a motion and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye, all those opposed, and the motion
carries.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
September 11, 2025 — Page 5

NEXT MEETING:

Commission Chairman Allison stated the next commission meeting will be held on Thursday,
October 9, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in Little Rock, Arkansas.

Commission Chairman Allison stated the Chair will entertain a motion to adjourn.
Commissioner Teague made a motion to adjourn. Commissioners Akin/Basore seconded.
With no further business, Commission Chairman Allison adjourned the meeting at 11:27 a.m.

Commission Chairman

Commission Secretary



